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)




)
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)

DECISION

We grant the motion for summary determination of the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”).  Alton Airport Limousine, Inc. (“Alton”) violated 
§ 307.400, RSMo Supp. 2004,
 and § 390.051.
Procedure


The MHTC filed an original and an amended complaint seeking to establish violations of federal and state motor carrier laws.  Although personally served with the original complaint and served by mail with the amended complaint, Alton has not responded.  On May 5, 2005, the MHTC filed an amended motion for summary determination.  We notified Alton that any response was due by May 20, 2005.  No attorney entered an appearance for Alton.  No response has been filed for Alton.
Findings of Fact

1.
Alton is a for-profit corporation incorporated in Illinois.  Alton operates with a certificate of authority for foreign for-profit corporations in Missouri.  
2.
Alton is a for-hire motor carrier operating motor vehicles over the public highways in Missouri.  The motor vehicles do not fall within any of the categories of exempt motor vehicles in § 390.030. 
3.
Alton’s principal place of business is at 5529 Dial Drive, Suite 8, Granite City, Illinois, 62040.
4.
As of the dates that Alton operated or permitted the operation of a motor vehicle in these Findings of Fact, the motor vehicle:

(a)
was owned, leased, or under the control of Alton;
(b) had a gross or combination weight rating of 26,001 or 10,001 pounds or more;

(c) was operated on a public highway in Missouri; and
(d)
transported passengers in intrastate or interstate commerce.


5.
Alton employs as drivers Robert R. Schmitt, Rich Brooks, Art Atkinson, Ronald Chinn, and Bryan Jenkins.

6.
On the dates below,
 Alton permitted the following drivers to operate a commercial motor vehicle transporting passengers, although none of the drivers had been medically examined and certified:
(a)
Robert R. Schmitt on January 3;
(b)
Rich Brooks on January 3;

(c)
Art Atkinson on January 5;

(d)
Ronald Chinn on January 8; and 

(e)
Bryan Jenkins on January 17.


7.
On the dates below, Alton permitted the following drivers to operate a commercial motor vehicle without requiring a record of duty status: 
(a)
Rich Brooks on January 3; 
(b)
Robert R. Schmitt on January 4;

(c)  Art Atkinson on January 23;

(d)
Ronald Chinn on January 22; and 

(e)
Bryan Jenkins on January 25.


8.
On January 5, Alton’s driver Art Atkinson operated a commercial motor vehicle that had been within Alton’s control for at least thirty (30) consecutive days, although at the time of this transportation, Alton had not maintained a record of inspection, repair and maintenance.

9.
Alton’s driver Robert R. Schmitt transported passengers for hire or compensation on the public highways in Missouri without a certificate authorizing such activity from the Motor Carrier Services Division within the Department of Transportation on the following dates:   September 3, 2003; October 1, 2003; November 5, 2003; December 4, 2003; and February 4, 2004.
Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction of the amended complaint.  Section 621.040, RSMo Supp. 2004.  The MHTC has the burden of proving its case by “clear and satisfactory evidence.”  Section 622.350, RSMo Supp. 2004.  The conduct of Alton’s employees, when acting within the scope of their duties is deemed the conduct of Alton.  Sections 390.176.3 and 622.480.3.

Our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.440(3)(B)3.A provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if any party establishes facts that entitle any party to a favorable decision and no party raises a genuine issue as to such facts.  The MHTC seeks to establish the facts in support of its amended motion for summary determination by incorporation of its certified records that were exhibits it filed with its original motion for summary determination.  We may consider these records under Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.440(3)(B)3.B because they are admissible by law under 
§ 536.070(8), (10), and (12).  
The MHTC also asks that we deem the allegations in its amended complaint as admitted because Alton never responded.  The MHTC relies on Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.425(1)(A) and (2)(B), which allow us to sanction a party who does not file an answer by “[d]eeming all or any part of an opposing party’s pleading admitted[.]”  We deny that request because Regulation 
1 CSR 15-3.440(3)(B)3.C provides:  “Except in response to a motion that relies solely on the pleadings, a party shall not rely solely on its own pleading to establish a fact, or to raise a genuine issue as to any fact.”  Accordingly, we determine whether the MHTC has established the necessary facts by consideration of Petitioner's Exhibits A through J on its original motion for summary determination.
Facts Common to All Counts


Petitioner’s exhibits prove the facts common to all counts in Findings 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5.    
Count I

Violations of 49 CFR § 391.45(a)

In its amended complaint, the MHTC asks us to find nine violations of § 307.400, RSMo Supp. 2004,
 and 49 CFR § 391.45(a).  The MHTC alleges that Alton permitted its drivers to 
operate a commercial motor vehicle without the drivers having been medically examined and certified on the following days:
(a)
January 3 and 4, Robert R. Schmitt;
(b)
January 3, Rich Brooks;

(c)
January 5 and 23, Art Atkinson;

(d)
January 8 and 22, Ronald Chinn; and

(3)
January 17 and 25, Bryan Jenkins.

The MHTC modifies this in its amended motion for summary determination to ask that we find violations only on January 3 (two drivers), and on January 5, 8, and 17.

Section 307.400, RSMo Supp. 2004, provides:


1.  It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of  Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of  Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation. . . .
Regulation 11 CSR 30-6.010 provides:
(1) Commercial motor vehicles and trailers, in addition to all requirements of state law and consistent with section 307.400, RSMo (1986), shall be operated and equipped in compliance with the requirements for drivers and vehicles established in 49 CFR 390-397 and 49 CFR 100-199.
Title 49 CFR § 391.11 provides:

(a) A person shall not drive a commercial motor vehicle unless he/she is qualified to drive a commercial motor vehicle.  Except as provided in Sec. 391.63, a motor carrier shall not require or permit a person to drive a commercial motor vehicle unless that person is qualified to drive a commercial motor vehicle.
(b) Except as provided in subpart G of this part, a person is qualified to drive a motor vehicle if he/she—
*   *   *
    (4) Is physically qualified to drive a commercial motor vehicle in accordance with subpart E—Physical Qualifications and Examinations of this part[.]
Title 49 CFR § 391.45, Subpart E—Physical Qualifications and Examinations, provides:
Except as provided in Sec. 391.67, the following persons must be medically examined and certified in accordance with Sec. 391.43 as physically qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle:
    (a) Any person who has not been medically examined and certified as physically qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle[.]
The affidavit from Alton’s president, attached as Petitioner’s Exhibit A, contains admissions for those five violations as set forth in Finding 6.  Petitioner’s Exhibits B, C, and D, the drivers’ trip sheets, support the admissions.  Therefore, we find that Alton violated 49 CFR 
§ 391.45(a) five times and that this violates § 307.400, RSMo Supp. 2004.  

Count II
Violations of 49 CFR § 395.8(a)

In its amended complaint, the MHTC asks that we find nine violations of § 307.400, RSMo Supp. 2004, and 49 CFR § 395.8(a) because Alton permitted drivers to operate a commercial motor vehicle without requiring a record of duty status:

(a)
January 3 and 4, Robert R. Schmitt;

(b)
January 3, Rich Brooks;

(c)
January 5 and 23, Art Atkinson;

(d)
January 8 and 22, Ronald Chinn; and

(3)
January 17 and 25, Bryan Jenkins.
The MHTC modifies this in its amended motion for summary determination to ask that we find violations only for January 3, 4, 22, 23, and 25.  

Title 49 CFR 395.8(a) provides:

(a) Except for a private motor carrier of passengers (nonbusiness), every motor carrier shall require every driver used by the motor carrier to record his/her duty status for each 24 hour period using the methods prescribed in either paragraph (a)(1) or (2) of this section.
Title 49 CFR 395.1 provides:
(e) 100 air-mile radius driver. A driver is exempt from the 

requirements of Sec. 395.8 if:
    (1) The driver operates within a 100 air-mile radius of the normal work reporting location;

    (2) The driver, except a driver salesperson, returns to the work reporting location and is released from work within 12 consecutive hours;

    (3)(i) A property-carrying commercial motor vehicle driver has at least 10 consecutive hours off duty separating each 12 hours on duty;

    (ii) A passenger-carrying commercial motor vehicle driver has at least 8 consecutive hours off duty separating each 12 hours on duty;

    (4)(i) A property-carrying commercial motor vehicle driver does not exceed 11 hours maximum driving time following 10 consecutive hours off duty; or

    (ii) A passenger-carrying commercial motor vehicle driver does not exceed 10 hours maximum driving time following 8 consecutive hours off duty; and

    (5) The motor carrier that employs the driver maintains and retains for a period of 6 months accurate and true time records showing:

    (i) The time the driver reports for duty each day;

    (ii) The total number of hours the driver is on duty each day;

    (iii) The time the driver is released from duty each day; and

    (iv) The total time for the preceding 7 days in accordance with 

Sec. 395.8(j)(2) for drivers used for the first time or intermittently.    

The affidavit from Alton’s president, attached as Petitioner’s Exhibit A, contains admissions for those five violations as set forth in Finding 7.  Petitioner’s Exhibits B and E, the drivers’ trip sheets, support the admissions.  There is no evidence to show that the exemption in 49 CFR 395.1(e) applies.  Therefore, we find that Alton violated 49 CFR §395.8(a) five times and that this violates § 307.400, RSMo Supp. 2004.
Count III
Violations of 49 CFR § 396.3(b)


In its amended complaint, the MHTC asks that we find two violations of § 307.400, RSMo Supp. 2004, and 49 CFR § 396.3(b) because Alton permitted Art Atkinson to operate a 
commercial motor vehicle on January 5 and 23 that had been within Alton’s control for at least 30 consecutive days, although at the time of this transportation, Alton had not maintained a record of inspection, repair and maintenance.  The MHTC modified its request in its amended motion for summary determination to ask us to find a violation only on January 5.  
Title 49 CFR § 396.3 provides:

(b) Required records--For vehicles controlled for 30 consecutive days or more, except for a private motor carrier of passengers (nonbusiness), the motor carriers shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, the following record for each vehicle:

    (1) An identification of the vehicle including company number, if so marked, make, serial number, year, and tire size. In addition, if the motor vehicle is not owned by the motor carrier, the record shall identify the name of the person furnishing the vehicle;

    (2) A means to indicate the nature and due date of the various inspection and maintenance operations to be performed;

    (3) A record of inspection, repairs, and maintenance indicating their date and nature; and

    (4) A record of tests conducted on pushout windows, emergency doors, and emergency door marking lights on buses.
Alton admits to this violation in its affidavit, Petitioner’s Exhibit A, as supported by Petitioner’s Exhibit C.  The affidavit contains the following:

Driver Art Atkinson made a trip on 1/5/04 transporting passengers from St. Louis Lambert airport to St. Louis, MO without having minimum records of inspection and vehicle maintenance on company vehicle, 15 passenger 1998 Dodge van, therefore in violation of 396.3(b). 

We find that Alton violated 49 CFR § 396.3(b) on January 5 and that this violates § 307.400, RSMo Supp. 2004.
Count IV

Violations of § 390.051, RSMo

In its amended complaint, the MHTC asks that we find that Alton violated § 390.051 by engaging in the business of transporting passengers on September 3, October 1, November 5, December 4, 2003, and February 4, 2004, without a certificate issued by the Motor Carrier 
Services Division with the Department of Transportation.  The MHTC asks for the same thing in its amended motion for summary determination. 
Section 390.051 provides:

1.  Except as otherwise provided in section 390.030, no person shall engage in the business of a common carrier in intrastate commerce on any public highway in this state unless there is in force with respect to such carrier a certificate issued by the division authorizing such operations.
Alton admits these violations in its affidavit, Petitioner’s Exhibit A.  Petitioner’s Exhibits F-1, F-2, and G support the admissions.  Therefore, we find that Alton violated § 390.050.1 five times.  
Summary


Alton violated § 307.400, RSMo Supp. 2004, by its five violations of 49 CFR § 391.45(a), its five violations of 49 CFR § 395.8(a), and its one violation of 49 CFR § 396.3(b).  Alton also violated § 390.051 five times.

We cancel the hearing.


SO ORDERED on July 14, 2005.



________________________________



JOHN J. KOPP 



Commissioner

	�Statutory references are to the 2000 Revised Statutes of Missouri, unless otherwise noted.


	�All dates refer to 2004, unless otherwise noted.


	�The version of § 307.400 applicable to the conduct in question was that amended in 2003.  L. 2003, H.B. No. 371, § A.  We cite the version in the 2004 Supplement to the Revised Statutes of Missouri, despite the fact that the statute was again amended in 2004.  The 2004 amendment is to subsection 7 and does not affect the text of subsection 1 or its application to the instant case.  L.2004, S.B. Nos. 1233, 840 & 1043, § A.  
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